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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

il « St. Thomas Episcopal Church is a small 1 1/2 story
Kstone buildin9- It is 30 ' x 4QI wit 1^16^) walls. It is a 
simple rectangular building with a gafete'roof. There are 
two widows on each side with 6 over 6 panes in each. There 
is one window on both gable ends which are 8 over 8 on the 
west side. On the east side, the sanctuary area in the 
interior, the window is 21 over 21 surmounted by a lunette.

On the interior the floorboards are 4 to 6 inches in 
width. The interior is very plain except for the pews and 
the altar. While there is no gallery in the church at the 
present there are indications that there was one. On the 
west side there appears to be an openning which has been 
sealed up above the window that would have led to a gallery. 
There are 2 electric heaters on a large cross beam. The 
church has'no basement but has a crawl space about 3 feet 
high.

The roof has been replaced with hand split shakes to 
use the same materials as the original. The shingles have a 
5 inch exposure.

In 1839 a stone enclosure was put around the entire 
church property. The wall is still extant.

The church was built in C.1790 and was used by the 
inhabitants of the area. In 1822 the church was repaired by 
the people because it had fallen into disrepair. The church 
however was abandoned again in 1865 because it was felt it 
was unfit for use. It was repaired in 1875 and has been 
used ever since. There have been no major aterations to the 
building only ocassional normal repairs.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

St. Thomas Episcopal Church is one of the oldest 
churches within Hunterdon County. As early as the 1720's 
the developing community saw the need for a church. The 
first church stood on the south side of the road, nearly 
opposite the present one. It was probably a frame building, 
for a girder and other timbers in the present church contain 
mortises and other evidences of having been previously used.

In May 1768 Reverend William Frazer reported that the 
old log church was so dilapidated that he had officiated in 
houses until spring. Reverend Frazer urged the congregation 
to subscribe for a handsome brick or stone church, to be 
started in the spring and completed in October 1769.

In May of 1769, the church was not even begun, because 
the people were still discussing the site. By September, 
however, the difference of opinion had been composed, and 
the stone walls were completed. Work on the church was slow 
and in July 1772 Reverend Frazer preached a special sermon 
to remind the people that the building was only fit for 
services scarcely five months of the year.

The coming of the revolution forced the church to 
close. It was reopened shortly after and continued to 
operate effectively until 1795 when Reverend Frazer passed 
away. For several years in the early 1800's the congregation 
was very small, there was probably no vestry, services were 
irregular, and the building and grounds were neglected. 
Dispite this the parish did not fold and in 1813-14 still 
contained about thirty families.

A revival of interest began about that time, after the 
appointment of the Reverend Daniel Higbee as missionary to 
vacant churches. He inspired the people to repair their 
"ruinous" church. In 1822 the church was thoroughly repaired 
and religious services were resumed under the ministry of 
Reverend Me Douglas of New Brunswick, New Jersey.
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SIGNIFICANCE

There was a suspension of services for about ten years, 
the church being considered unfit for use. In 1875-76, 
Frederick Potts of Pittstown financed and personally supervised 
a complete repair of the building.

St. Thomas 1 architectural significance rests on the 
fact that it is one of a few examples of 18th century archi­ 
tecture still extant in the county. It is a representative 
example of early churches in the area and the care which has 
been taken to preserve the building is important in its own 
right.

As one of the oldest churches in Hunterdon County, St. 
Thomas has a strong religious significance. The fact that 
the people felt a need for a church as early as 1723 and 
when it was no longer useful replaced it with the present 
building shows their feeling for religion. Several times 
the present church fell into disrepair and the congregation 
with the help of benefactors managed to restore it and 
continue to use it. Their feelings for church and this 
building throughout the past 175 years have contributed to 
preserving the building until today.


